
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 
626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY DECEMBER 16, 2019 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

Amended Agenda 

 
 

 
 

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 
 

2. Roll Call. 
 

3. Approve Minutes of the November 18, 2019 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 
agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 
 

6. Downtown Design Review: 
 

a. Application by Dennis Dahl - DBA Parcor LLC, 664 N. Milwaukee Ave., 
Prospect Heights, IL, 60070, request to install a blade sign to the exterior of the 
property located at 253 Center St. unit 203, in the Business Central (BC) zoning 
district, Tax Key No. ZOP00283. 

 
7. Review and a Recommendation for a request on Extraterritorial Zoning (ETZ) land 

division application for a Certified Survey Map (CSM) submitted by Martin Arenson, 
23442 N. Wildwood Ln. Deerfield, IL 60015. Located at W3549 Longwood Dr., Lake 
Geneva, in the Town of Geneva, the request is to consolidate 4 existing lots into a single 
lot CSM for Tax Key Nos. JA478700001, JA478700002, JA478700003 & JA478700004. 
 

8. Public Hearing and Recommendation for a Conditional Use Permit filed by Nicholas 
Pinnt, 1155 LaSalle Ct., for the request to allow for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
land use (24 hour fitness gym) for the property located at 901 Maxwell St. in the Planned 
Development (PD) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZCL200015. 
 
 

Amended – Added Item 13 



9. Public Hearing and Recommendation for a Conditional Use Permit filed by Samantha 
Strenger, 615 Center St. for a Commercial Indoor Lodging land use for the property 
located at 715 Williams St. located in the General Business (GB) zoning district, Tax Key 
No. ZF00042. 

 
10. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend a Conditional Use Permit filed by Robert 

and Judy Jurewicz, 1201 Townline Rd., for an Indoor Maintenance Service land use for 
the property located at 1201 Townline Rd. located in the Rural Holding (RH) zoning 
district, Tax Key No. ZA19740001. 

 
11. Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend a Conditional Use Permit filed by 

Michael Hanley & John Engerman, - DBA Clear Sky LLC. 302 Townline Rd., for a 
Personal Storage Facility land use at the property located at 302 Townline Rd. located in 
the Planned Industrial (PI) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZYUP00144. 
 

12. Continuation until February of the Public Hearing and Recommendation for a request to 
amend an existing Conditional Use Permit filed by Daniel Schuld, 281 Keyes Ave. 
Hampshire IL, 60140 to renovate the exterior of the property located at 727 Geneva 
Street, in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00157. 

 
13. Discussion/recommendations to City Planners for Draft 3 of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
14. Adjournment. 

 
QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 12/12/2019 
 

 



1 of 3 

November 18, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2019 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order 6:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, Brett Stanczak, Ann Esarco, Michael Krajovic. 
Absent (Excused) William Catlin. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney Draper, City Administrator Nord, 
Building and Zoning Administrator Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee. 
 
Approve Minutes of the October 21st, 2019 Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  
Gibbs/Esarco motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  
None. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  
Correspondence was received from Gerald Somers, 930 Maytag Road, opposing the amendment of the Precise 
Implementation Plan at 940 Maytag Road. Correspondence was received from Ruth Hackman, 538 Fremont Avenue, 
opposing any changes to Hillmoor and to keep everything the same. Correspondence was received from Hank & Mary 
Sibbing, urging the land use designation to remain the same for the Hillmoor property. Correspondence was received from 
Jim Good, Golfview, opposing any zoning change for Hillmoor. All correspondence has been distributed to the Plan 
Commission and the City Council. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Bohdan & Patricia Kachur 968 S. Lake 
Shore Dr., for a request to allow the renovations to the exterior of the property located in the Estate Residential 
(ER-1) zoning district and to utilize the Single Family – 4 (SR-4) setbacks, Tax Key No. ZYUP00106A. 
Patricia Kachur, 968 S Lake Shore Drive, presented her request. Zoning Administrator Walling said this project meets our 
SR-4 setbacks with no substantial expansion to the home. 
 
Krajovic/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Esarco motion to recommend the Conditional Use Permit to allow the renovations to the exterior of the property 
and utilize the SR-4 setbacks and include all staff recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Stanczak, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend an existing Conditional Use Permit filed by Patrick & Rachel 
Lynch 940 Maytag Rd., for a request to allow the reduction to the lake shore setback of the property located in the 
Estate Residential (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZCE00005. 
Tim Lynch, Lynch & Associates, clarified the location of the foundation as seen by Lynch & Associates Engineering, 
which differs from the drawing provided by the architect and confirmed the previously approved PIP. Walling said the 
PIP approval was based on the original submittal, with the General Development Plan showing a line from the corner of 
the two neighboring homes in which the proposed structure could not go past. Planner Slavney stated the Plan 
Commission did not approve of a distance from the shoreline, but did approve of the line created from the corner of each 
neighboring home. Slavney referenced the importance of the lake view to all owners and suggested adhering to the line 
approved in the original submittal. Mayor Hartz read the correspondence from the neighbor at 930 Maytag Road. 
Commissioner Stanczak asked if any other structures are past this line. Walling said no, the stairs come up to the lower 
level terrace. Commissioner Gibbs asked for clarification of the line which was approved. Discussion followed. 
 
Speaker #1: Dick Malmin, N1991 S Lake Shore Drive, agreed with Planner Slavney and shared his thoughts on this 
project. 
 



2 of 3 

November 18, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Speaker #2: Frank Guido, 5625 Cranberry Road, Burlington, builder for the Lynch family, shared his thoughts on the 
house placement and believes the house is in compliance with the lake front setback and numerical dimension. 
 
Speaker #3: Theresa Giese, 528 Sage Street, shared her opposition to this PIP amendment and would like the excess to be 
torn down. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Hartz addressed a clerical error on the agenda. 940 Maytag Road received a GDP and PIP earlier this year, not a 
Conditional Use so the applicant is asking for an amendment to a Precise Implementation Plan. Hartz said it was an honest 
mistake but we have to adhere to the standards and build what is approved.  
 
Hartz/Skates motion to denial to amend the existing GDP & PIP to allow the reduction to the lake shore setback of the 
property. 
 
Slavney stated the principal of staying behind the line was the guiding force to establish approval for the GDP & PIP and 
there was a misinterpretation of what the approval was. Slavney said because of the mistake, it is a violation, and the Plan 
Commission should not approve the amendment and stick to the rule as it was approved. 
 
Voting clarification: yes = deny, no = not approving the motion 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Stanczak, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.” Gibbs voting “no.” Motion carried 5-1. 
 
Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation for a request to amend an existing Conditional Use 
Permit filed by Daniel Schuld, 281 Keyes Ave. Hampshire IL, 60140 to renovate the exterior of the property 
located at 727 Geneva Street, in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00157. 
 
Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 
 
Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing to the next Plan Commission meeting at the request of the owner. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation for an amendment of the Zoning Ordinance section 98-704 restricting off 
street parking to paved surfaces only. 
Walling said not-for-profit organizations have requested permission for off-street parking for events in the City Lake 
Geneva for years. The request to amend the Ordinance would enable theses organizations to continue their service to the 
community. Slavney explained this request would allow off-street parking for organizations with legal registration as a 
not-for-profit with the State. Hartz asked for clarification on length of the permit and what constitutes an event. Walling 
explained the temporary use permit and the time frame. Attorney Draper said standards and clarifications can be added to 
the Ordinance.  
 
Hartz/Skates motion to continue the Public Hearing and Recommendations for an amendment of the Zoning Ordinance 
section 98-704 and direct staff to clarify what constitutes not-for-profit organization and length of time for event permit. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Stanczak, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing and Recommendation to amend the existing wording of the Tourist Rooming House ordinance to 
identify to Short Term Rental ordinance. 
Attorney Draper said the proposed word changes were requested to differentiate the City’s Tourist Rooming House from 
the Tourist Rooming House regulated by the State. Draper is also working with staff to address concerns from citizens 
regarding our Tourist Rooming House Inspections, the Guest Log, the Knox Boxes and the License Fees. Draper will 
create report after the research and present to the Plan Commission. More changes may occur. 
 
Speaker #1: Theresa Giese, 528 Sage Street, asked for an explanation of Bed & Breakfast, Short Term Rental & Tourist 
Rooming House.  
Draper discussed the differences between the three categories. Slavney said the State has different laws for each category 
and the City needs to be consistent to minimize confusion. Krajovic asked for further clarification between TRH & STR. 



3 of 3 

November 18, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Slavney stated Tourist Rooming House is a full time commercial use which can be rented out for any length of time; Short 
Term Rental is an accessory use in which the State allows any property owner to rent out their home. Hartz said the home 
must be rented for a minimum of 6 days and only in a period of 180 continuous days. 
 
Skates/Esarco motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Gibbs motion to approve the amendment to the existing wording of the Tourist Rooming House Ordinance to 
identify as Short Term Rental Ordinance.  
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Stanczak, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates/Stanczak motion to direct the staff, including attorney Draper, to review the current structure for Short Term 
Rentals, review with the plaintiffs attorneys and report back with results to the Plan Commission. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Stanczak, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Adjournment.  Gibbs/Skates motion to adjourn at 7:09 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



1 of 3 

November 26, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 26, 2019 – 5:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order 5:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, Brett Stanczak, Ann Esarco. Absent (Excused) 
Michael Krajovic, William Catlin. Also Present: City Planner Brian Munson, City Attorney Draper, City Administrator 
Nord, Building and Zoning Administrator Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes.  
 
Speaker #1: Dimitri Anagnos, 148 Cass Street, shared history, statistics, and suggestions and asked the City to take time to 
make decisions regarding the Hillmoor property. 
 
Speaker #2: Tom Reed, 100 E Main Street, shared his suggestions for the Hillmoor property and asked the city officials to 
work with the citizens when making decisions for this property. 
 
Speaker #3: Rick Steinberg, 1032 Williams Street, shared his thoughts in favor of leaving the property as is and let the 
developer come up with a proposal. 
 
Speaker #4: David Frost, 1556 Orchard Lane, suggested the map does not need to change and shared his thoughts in favor 
of keeping the small town atmosphere, lake focused, with a vibrant downtown.  
 
Speaker #5: Don Ogden, 108 Evelyn Lane, asked why a Hillmoor concept needs to be created. 
 
Speaker #6: Spyro Condos, 1760 Hillcrest Drive, opposes the city creating a plan for the developer, the possibility of 
changing the master plan and asked the Plan Commission to do nothing and adjourn this meeting. 
 
Speaker #7: Hank Sibbing, 1725 Hillcrest Drive, requested an immediate adjournment due to the following: a meeting 
notice was not given to the newspaper to notify the public of this meeting; it is prior to the open house discussion on the 
same concepts next week; and one plan commissioner is absent.  
 
Speaker #8: Jim Strauss, N1517 Meadow Ridge Circle, shared his concerns regarding this meeting and past decisions 
made by the city. 
 
Speaker #9: Jackie Getzen, 15 Lakeview Drive, asked if the city considered creating Hillmoor as a conservancy like 
Kishwauketo in Williams Bay. 
 
Speaker #10: Pete Peterson, 1601 Evergreen Lane, addressed the Plan Commission as appointed representatives, to listen 
to the community when making decisions, suggested adjourning the meeting. 
 
Speaker #11: Maureen Marks, 834 Dodge Street, shared her opposition to any changes and asked for this meeting to be 
adjourned. 
 
Commissioner Catlin arrived at 5:45 pm. 
 
Speaker #12: Charlene Klein, 817 Wisconsin Street, shared her concerns regarding the development of the Hillmoor 
property, improper procedure, and statistics of the growth in Lake Geneva and also asked the Plan Commission not to 
vote. 
 



2 of 3 

November 26, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Speaker #13: Ted Harig, owner of 821 Geneva Street, shared his concerns for additional resources needed to service 
additional development on the Hillmoor property, urged the Plan Commission to walk cautiously in decision-making and 
asked for adjournment of this meeting due to improper notice.  
 
Speaker #14: Karen Yancey, Geneva Lake Conservancy, shared her concerns regarding this meeting and the short notice 
which didn’t allow the Conservancy time to study these comments or prepare a statement. 
 
Speaker #15: Mary Jo Fesenmaier, 1085 S Lake Shore Drive, shared her concerns about how decisions are made in the 
city and asked for the meeting to be adjourned. 
 
Speaker #16: Sarah Hill, 1024 George Street, shared her thoughts in favor of responsible development for the Hillmoor 
property and believes it is time to make a decision.  
 
Speaker #17: Scott Woodley, 302 Country Club Drive, shared his thoughts on the Hillmoor property and asked the city to 
pause and consider the best use for this property. 
 
Speaker #18: Sherri Ames, 603 Center Street, shared her thoughts in favor of leaving the property as is and asked for the 
meeting to be adjourned. 
 
Speaker #19: Robert Valkanet, 1208 Madison Street, shared his opposition to allow development of the Hillmoor 
property. 
 
Speaker #20: Mark Immer, 821 Madison Street, shared his thoughts in favor of preserving the Hillmoor property. 
 
Speaker #21: Grace Hanny, 311 Oakwood Lane, thanked the Plan Commission and City Council, spoke about the history 
of Lake Geneva and asked city officials to listen to the citizens as decisions are made for the future. 
 
Speaker #22: Dick Malmin, N1991 S Lake Shore Drive, shared his thoughts on the lawsuit and his opposition to contract 
zoning. 
 
Speaker #23: Marcie Hollmann, 1566 Orchard Lane, shared her experience of a summer vision workshop and asked the 
mayor and Plan Commission to listen to the people. 
 
Speaker #24: Terry O’Neill, 954 George Street, reflected on his experience with a past lawsuit as an alderman and asked 
the Plan Commission not to vote for any changes. 
 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  
Correspondence was received opposing a map change, land use change, rezoning or unreasonable development to the 
Hillmoor property from: 
Thomas J. Anthony, 482 Country Club Drive 
Patrick Myers 
Penni and Dave Jones, 1321 Dodge Street 
Lou Kagan 
Sonette Tippens, N1524 Wildwood Road 
Georgianna & Jay Kleiman, 1551 Lake Shore Drive 
Grace Hanny, 311 Oakwood Lane 
Jeff Bauer, 402 Country Club Drive 
 
Correspondence was received from Hal Cook, opposing high density housing and commercial property development. 
Charlene Klein shared her dismay at the timing of this special meeting. 
All correspondence has been distributed to the Plan Commission and the City Council. 
 
 
 



3 of 3 

November 26, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

 
Adjournment.  Hartz/Skates motion to adjourn at 6:15 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review on the request to install 
a blade sign located at 253 Center St Unit 203, Tax Key No. ZOP00283 located in the Central 
Business (CB) zoning district. 
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 
the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Staff Recommendations:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the Alteration and installation request as submitted. 
 
 

 

Applicant: 
Dennis Dahl 
322 N. Cincinnati St. 
Spring Green, WI 53588 

Request: 
253 Center St. Unit 203 
Downtown Design Review for Exterior 
Signage 
Tax Key No. ZOP00283 

Agenda Item #6a 















 1 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date:  September 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description:  

This request is to approve an Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the request to combine 4 
parcels into a single tax parcel Tax Key No. JA478700001, JA478700002, JA478700003 & 
JA478700004 located in the Town of Geneva. 
 
This request is to approve the proposed Certified Survey Map dated October 8, 2019 prepared 
Brian Carlson project no. 7192.15 for the property located at W3549 Longwood Dr. 
 
The newly created parcel will be 8.64 acres. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ)  
As part of the consideration of the requested ETZ, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed ETZ 
review. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 
Zoning request (ETZ): as submitted, subject to approval Walworth County Land Use 
Zoning. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: 7 

Applicant: 
Martin Arenson 
23442 N. Wildwood Ln. 
Deerfield, IL 60015 

Request: ETZ Town of Geneva  
Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review CSM to Tax 
Key Nos. JA47870001 thru JA478700004 













STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment land use at the property located at 901 Maxwell St. that will utilize a 
portion of the existing commercial building located in the Planned Development (PD) zoning 
district. 
 
The applicant is proposing utilizing approximately 4,000 square feet of the existing building for 
a 24 hour fitness facility. 
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 
The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four 
sides of the proposed home. 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

Applicant: 
Nicholas Pinnt 
1155 LaSalle Ct 
Lake Geneva 

Agenda Item: 8 

Request: 
901 Maxwell St 
Conditional Use Permit 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment  
(Fitness Gym) Tax Key No. ZCL200015 
 



A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 



the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration 
the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to 
ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 
 



















STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Commercial 
Indoor Lodging land use at the property located at 715 Williams St. identified as Quick Trip Get 
Away located in the General Business (GB). 
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 
The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four 
sides of the proposed home. 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 
Samantha Strenger 
615 Center St. 
Lake Geneva 

Agenda Item: 9 

Request: 
715 Williams St 
Conditional Use Permit 
Commercial Indoor Lodging 
Tax Key No. ZF00042 



and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 



d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration 
the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to 
ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 
 
 























STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a request to amend the existing Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) for Indoor Maintenance Services land use at the property located at 1201 Townline 
Rd. in the Rural Holding (RH) zoning classification. 
 
The current site plan depicts the proposed operations and storage of exterior materials. The 
property owners have been working with staff to remove several items from the street side of the 
property in addition the applicants will be minimizing the machinery and items located in the 
rear of the property that is fenced in, starting in the spring of 2020. 
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 
The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four 
sides of the proposed home. 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

Applicant: 
Robert & Judy Jurewicz 
1201 Townline Rd. 
Lake Geneva 

Agenda Item: 10 

Request: 
Amend Existing Conditional Use Permit 
Indoor Maintenance Service 
Tax Key No. ZA197400001 



A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 



the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration 
the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to 
ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 
 
 
 









STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 
Meeting Date: December 16, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a request of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) that 
would allow for the granting of a Personal Storage Facility land use at the property located at 
302 Townline Rd. in the Planned Industrial (PI) zoning classification. 
 
Project Details from CUP Submittal 
The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four 
sides of the proposed home. 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 
A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 
A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the 

appropriate fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

Applicant: 
Michael Hanley & John Engerman 
302 Townline Rd. 
Lake Geneva 

Agenda Item: 11 

Request: 
Conditional Use Permit 
Personal Storage Facility 
Tax Key No. ZYUP00144 



and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 
Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate 
such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the 
appropriate fact finding would be one or more of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 

objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 
and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 
official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required 
site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be 
developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Comprehensive Plan or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the City or other governmental agency 
having jurisdiction to guide development. 



d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration 
the Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to 
ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
conditional use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided 
above. 

 
 
 
 
 


















































	1. December 16 2019 Agenda - Amended
	3. a. November 18 2019 Plan Commission Minutes
	3. b. November 26 2019 Special Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a. 253 Center Street Downtown Design
	7. CSM - ETZ Plat
	8. 901 Maxwell Street CUP
	9. 715 Williams Street CUP
	10. 1201 Townline Road
	11. 302 Townline Road CUP

